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13261. Adulteration of butter. U. S.v. 7 Cartons (448 pounds) * * “*, (F.D.C.
No. 21926, Sample No. 51473—-H.)

LieerL Fep: November 7, 1946, Southern District of New York.
- ALLEGED SHIPMENT ! On or about October 25, 1946, by the Hannover Cooperative

Creamery, from Hannover, N. Dak. '

PropDUCT: 7 cartons, each containing approximately 64 pounds, of butter at

New York, N. Y. v : :

NATURE oF CHARGE: Adulteration, Section 402 (b) (2), a product containing
less than 80 percent by weight of milk fat had been substituted for butter.

DispostTioN : November 26, 1946. Zenith-Godley Co., Inc., claimant, having
admitted the allegations of the libel, judgment of condemnation was entered
and the product was ordered released under bond, to be reworked under the
supervision of the Food and Drug Administration.

13262. Adulteration of butter. U.S.v. 6 Cartons (384 pounds) * * * (F.D.C

No. 25366. Sample No. 25703-K.) _
LiIBEL FILED.Q July 9, 1948, Southern District of New York.

ALLEGED SHIPMENT: On or about June 29, 1948, by the Lisbon Creamery, from

" Lisbon, N. Dak. ‘
PropucT: 6 64-pound cartons of butter at New York, N. Y. _
LaBEL, IN Parr: “Creamery. Butter Distributed by Harry Rappaport, Ine.
- New York.” - _ . .
'NATURE OF CHARGE: - Adulteration, Section 402 (b) (2), a product containing
Jess than 80 percent by weight of milk fat had been substituted for butter.
DisposITION :  July 29, 1948. Harry Rappaport, Inc., claimant, having admitted
the allegations of the libel, judgment of condemnation was entered and the
product was ordered released under bond to be reworked ander the super-
visi_on of the Food and Drug Administration. .

13263. Adulteration of butter. U.S.v.18 Cubes (1,152 pounds) * * * (F.D. C.
No. 24938, Sample Nos. 37811-K, 87814-K, 87815-K.) -
. Liser Ficep: June 3, 1948, Western District of ‘Washington.

ALLEGED SEHIPMENT: On or about May 11, 1948, by the Iowa Pacific Butter &
Egg Co., from Ottumwa, Iowa.

Propucr: 18 -64-pound cubes of butter at Seattle, Wash. _

LABEL, IN Parr: “Creamery Butter - The Peter Fox Sons Co. Distributors
* * * (Chicago, Ill.”

NATURE oF CHARGE: Adulteration, Section 402 (b) (2), a product containing
less than 80 percent by weight of milk fat had been substituted for buftter.
DisposiTioN: July 7, 1948, The Wwashington Creamery Co., Seattle, Wash,,
claimant, having consented to the entry of a decree, judgment of condem-
nation was entered and the product was ordered released under bond to be

rechurned under the supervision of the Tood and Drug Administration.

CHEESE

183264. Aection to enjoin and restrain the interstate shipment of adulterated
cheese and cheese products. U. S. v. Hygrade Food Products Corporation
and Donald Holdridzge. Tried to the court. Injunection granted against
corporation. Case against Donald Holdridge dismissed. Injunction mod-

. ified apon appeal. (Inj. No. 80.)

CoMPLAINT Frep: January 10, 1945, Northern District of Iowa, against the
Hygrade Food Products Corp., and Donald Holdridge, manager of the branch
plant at Manchester, Iowa. : ' '

N.:}TURE oF CHARGE: The defendants had been receiving, preparing, and process-
ing milk, and preparing and processing cheese and cheese products from such
milk under grossly insanitary conditions and offering for interstate shipment
and shipping in'intersta_te commerce, cheese and cheese products adulterated
as follows: Section 402 (a) (3), the products consisted in whole or in part of
filthy substances by reason of the presence of rodent hairs, cat hairs, weevils,
manure, mud, cow hairs, and other filthy substances unfit for food ; and, Section

402 (a) (4), they had been prepared under insanitary conditions whereby they .

. may have become contaminated with filth and may have been rendered injurious
to health. ,
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PraYErR oF CoMmPLAINT: That a preliminary injunction issue, restraining the
defendants from commission of the acts complained of, and that, after due
proceedings, the preliminary injunction be made permanent.

Disposition : On February 9, 1945, a temporary injunction issued. On May 186,
1945, the temporary injunction was dissolved following stipulation by the de-
fendant corporation that it would not ship in interstate commerce any milk
products manufactured at the Manchestér, Iowa, plant of the defendant during
a period of 90 days from that date. On September 7, 1945, and subsequent
thereto, various hearings were held, and on October 13, 1945, the court ordered
the action dismissed as to Donald Hoeldridge on the ground that he had not been
employed by the defendant company for some time and that while employed he
had little if any executive authority. On the same date, the court entered judg-
ment enjoining and restraining the defendant, as more fully appears in the
opinion of the circuit court of appeals, infra. Notice of appeal was filed on
behalf of the defendant corporation, and on April 19, 1947, the Circuit Oourt
of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit handed down the followmg opinion :

GARDNER, Circuit Judge: “This is an appeal from a judgment entered in
an action brought by the government against Hygrade Food Products Cor-
- poration under the provisions of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act,
which enjoined appellant from shipping in interstate commerce any of its
products processed and manufactured at its Manchester, Iowa, plant. It
-will be convenient to refer to the parties as they appeared in the trial court.
“The defendant, since March, 1944, has owned and operated a, plant at
Manchester, Iowa, and has been engaged in the processing of cheese and cheese
products from milk, and shipping these products in interstate commerce. It
is charged in the complaint that these products have become contaminated
with filth, rendering them injurious to health, and were adulterated in viola-
tion of Sectlon 342 (a), (3) and (4), Title 21, U. S. C. A. After hearmg
the court found that defendant acquired its plant at Manchester, Jowa, in
March, 1944, and has since been engaged in the processing of cheese and
cheese products from milk, and has been shipping and introducing the prod-
ucts 80 processed into interstate commerce; that under the standards used
by the Administrator of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, milk as
to sediment content is classified into five grades known as Grades 1 to 5
inclusive; that Grade 1 is milk which is practically free from sediment; that
Grade 2 is milk in which there is only a very small amount of sediment;
that Grade 3 is' milk in which there is a moderate amount of sediment; that
Grade 4 is milk in which there is a large amount of sediment, and that Grade
5 is milk in which there is a very large amount of sediment; that milk which
grades 1 and 2 is highly fit and satisfactory for processing 1nto cheese ; that
milk which grades 3, while undesirable, does not have such a heavy sedlment
content as to result in filthy cheese, but that milk which is graded 4 and 5
.-is such filthy milk as to result in ﬁlthy cheese. The court then sets out the
results of various inspections of the defendant’s plant at which milk was
graded. The court found that the problem of filthy milk in the area of de-
fendant’s Manchester, Iowa, plant has been aggravated by war time conditions
in that the farmers have been short of help; that the defendant, commencing
in July, 1945, for the first time began to cope with the filthy m1lk situation
and. has spent someé time, effort and expense on the problem ; that it made
special provision for an employee to do somethmg about the filthy milk
situation by carrying on an educational campaign among the milk producers;
that it made arrangements to have tests made of the milk as delivered at
the plant and as a result the number of defendant’s patrons have been reduced
from around one hundred to fifty-eight; that the producers of filthy milk
whose product is rejected by defendant frequently thereafter sell their filthy
milk or cream to certain of defendant’s competitors, but that defendant since
it began operating the Manchester plant has been a large outlet for filthy
milk and a hindrance to those purchasers of milk and ¢ream who are trying
to raise the standards of dairy cleanliness, and that certain of defendant’s
compet1t0rs now operate as a hindrance to the defendant when it is trying to
raise the standards of dairy cleanliness; that since July 16, 1945, defendant
has put considerable pressure on its patrons to quit dehverlng filthy milk,
but when defendant relaxes this pressure a number of such patrons lapse back
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_into dairy uncleanliness, and that when government pressure is released as
to defendant it relaxes back into acceptance and processing of filthy milk. (
The court found, ‘That the defendant has shown that it can and will do every-
thing necessary to place its plant at Manchester, Iowa, in proper condition
for the production of cheese, and no injunction is needed as to that phase.’
~ The court also found that because of competitive conditions and the desire .
to secure milk the pressure on defendant to accept filthy milk was such that
- defendant could not resist it and that before defendant would be able to
refrain from using filthy milk a very substantial change in the entire back-
ground in the matter of dairy cleanliness in the area served by its plant would
have to occur. The court found that unless restrained by the court defendant .
would ship in interstate commerce dairy products processed at its Manches- -
ter, Iowa, plant contaminated by filthy substances contrary to the provisions
of Title 21 U. 8. C. A., Secs. 331 (a) and 842 (a) (8). The court entered
judgment restraining defendant, ' :
« * % fpom shipping or introducing into interstate commerce any cheese or other
dairy products processed at its Manchester, Iowa, plant. .
- "It is further ordered that after the expiration of two years, the defendant may move
to modify this judgment so as to permit it to ship or introduce into interstate commerce
cheese or other dairy products processed at its Manchester, Iowa, plant on the ground

‘that there has been such a change in circumstances as to justify the expectation that
. sueh products will be processed without the use of filthy milk.

“In seeking reversal defendant challenges the court’s findings and conclu-
sions on substantially the following grounds: (1) the court should have refused
an injunction because defendant is a responsible and reputable party and no
present intention to violate the law appears; (2) the injunction should not be
entered against the defendant as a penalty for past infractions; (3) injunc-

"tional relief provided for under Section 332, Title 21 U. 8. C. A,, presupposes a
" temporary injunction only with opportunity to the defendant to show a change
of circumstances; (4) under Section 332, Title 21 U. S. C. A, the court was
without authority to enjoin a processor or shipper from shipping its unadulter-
-ated products in interstate commerce. :

“Section 331, Title 21 U. S. C. A. prohibits the introduction or delivery for (
introduction into interstate commerce of any food, drug, device, or cosmetic that -
is adulterated or misbranded, and Section 332 of the same title confers jurisdic-
tion upon the District Courts of the United States ‘for cause shown L S 1)
-restrain violations of Section 331.

“When defendant acquired the Manchester plant in March, 1944, it was in a
dilapidated and unsanitary condition so far as the equipment and buildings were
‘econcerned and the manager was apparently careless and incompetent. Since
that time defendant has discharged the old manager who had been in the employ
of defendant’s predecessor and employed a skilled and- competent manager to

- take his place. It has made very substantial repairs, additions, improvements
and changes in its physical structures so that the court found, ‘That the de-
fendant has shown that it can and will do everything necessary to place its
plant at Manchester, Iowa, in proper condition for the production of cheese,
and no injunction is needed as to that phase”’ The basis for granting the in-
junction lies in the fact that defendant’s supply of milk was up to the time of
the hearing below the standard required although the defendant had with ap-
parent good faith been endeavoring to educate the producers to furnish a better
grade and in so doing had rejected unfit milk to such an extent that it had lost
about forty percent of its patrons. The importance of these recitals goes simply

" to the question of defendant’s good faith. As above noted, it has replaced its
incompetent plant manager with a competent and skilled one and at a large

" expenditure has so improved the condition of its plant that no injunction is
needed so far as the sanitary condition of the plant is concerned, nor indeed, so
far as the present personnel of the management is concerned. The fact remains,
‘however, that the milk supply which was being received at the plant even up to

~ the time of hearing was not up to the required standard and this warranted the

" court in granting an injunction. The jurisdiction of the court, however, is
limited to restraining violation of Section 331, and that is the introduction or
delivery for introduction into interstate commerce of products that are adulter-

" ated or misbranded. An injunetion is primarily a preventive remedy ; it looks

. to the future rather than to the past. It is not for the purpose of punishing

" for wrongful acts already committed. White v. Sparkill Realty Corp., 280 -

e,
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U. 8. 500 ; Duplex Printing Press Co. v. Deering, 254 U. S. 443 ; Bowles, Adm. v.
Carnegie-Illinois Steel Corp., 7 Cir., 149 F. 2d 545. The injunction here abso-
lutely closes the door of the court on the defendant for an arbitrary period of
two years regardless of what changes may be brought about during that time.
Defendant cannot even ask the court to modify the injunction. This ig true for
a period of two years even though the grounds for which it was granted no
longer exist by reason of a change in the controlling facts on which the injunc-
tion rested. The injunctional decree should be an ambulatory one. It is ex-
ecutory and continuing as to its purpose and should be subject to adaptation
as events may change. This is not a case in which rights may be said fully to
have accrued upon facts which are stable, permanent and impervious to change,
but it involves the supervision of changing conduct or conditions. The denial
of the right to apply to the court for a modification of the judgment within a
period of two years is contrary to the genius of the jurisprudence of chancery.
Under our system of government even the social outcast or the convicted crim--
inal, though shunned by society, may have his day in court and seek for justice.
We think too, the injunction is too broad in that it restrains the defendant from
shipping any products processed at its Manchester plant regardless of what the
grade of the processed products might be. As has been observed, the physical
plant itself is in sanitary condition; it-is competently managed. It has not
apparently been able to secure raw material of the requisite grade, It is
surely conceivable that with its present equipment and personnel, defendant
could process products that are not, within the meaning of the statute, adulter-
ated, and if so, it should be permitted to have such products transported in
interstate commerce. :

“The judgment appealed from should be modified so as to enjoin and restrain
defendant, under the provisions of Section 332, Title 21 U. 8. C. A,, from intro-
ducing or- delivering for introduction into interstate commerce, in violation
of Section 831 and Section 342 (a) (8), Title 21 U. 8. C. A,, adulterated cheese
or dairy products processed or manufactued, or to be processed or manufactured
at its Manchester, Jowa, plant. The judgment should contain recital that
jurisdiction of the cause is retained for the purpose of enforcing or modifying
the judgment and for the purpose of granting such further relief as may
hereafter appear appropriate. When so modified, the injunction can, of
course, be enforced by contempt proceedings if necessary. The injunction
should forbid only the acts which are prohibited by the statute. It should
not prohibit the shipping or introducing of pure products into interstate
commerce. As so modified the judgment will be affirmed.”

On April 26, 1947, a mandate from the appellate court was filed in the United
States district court, directing that the judgment of October 13, 1945, be
modified, and in accordance therewith an order was entered on April 28, 1947,
under which the defendant corporation was enjoned and restrained from
introducing or delivering for introduction into interstate commerce adulterated
cheese or dairy products processed or manufactured or to be processed or
manufactured at its Manchester, Iowa, plant. . » v

- On June 11, 1947, a hearing was held on the application of the defendant
corporation to dissolve the injunction, and on the basis of the evidence pre-
sented the court found that the conditions originally necessitating the issuance
of the injunction had been so changed that an injunction was no longer neces-
sary, and that the injunction had accomplished the purpose for which it was
issued. Judgment was accordingly entered dissolving the injunction.

13265. Action to enjoin and restrain the interstate shipment of cheese and cheese
curd. U. S. v. Delaware Valley Creamery Co., Inc. Default decree grant-
ing injunetiom. (Inj. No. 182.) : ) .
CoMPLAINT F1iep: November 6, 1947, Southern District of New York, against
Delaware Valley Creamery Co., Inc., New York, N. Y.
~ NATURE oF CHARGE: That the defendant had been and was introducing and
: delivering for introduction in interstate commerce, at Cambridge Springs, Pa.,
cheese and cheese curd which were adulterated in the following respects:
Section 402 (a) (8), they consisted in part of filthy substances, such as rodent
hair, nondescript dirt, plant material, and insect fragments; and, Section
. 402 (a) (4), they had been and were being prepared and held under insanitary
conditions at the Cambridge Springs, Pa., plant whereby they may have be-
come contaminated with filth. :



